


Table of Contents
January §, 2022

Agenda Item #II1.....coieiiiiiiiiiiiii it ireeeiiteeeearrearrerneerrasrarneeerenaran Approval of Agenda

Agenda Item #IV................ Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of December 15, 2021

Agenda Item #V.........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 0. General Manager Comments



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #I11



I.
I1.

%

V Board of Public Utilities

Kansas City, Kansas

BOARD AGENDA

3

Regular Session
January 5, 2022 — 6:00 P.M.

Call to Order

Roll Call

_____Ryan Eidson, At Large, Position 2
____Tom Groneman, District 2

___Robert L. Milan, Sr., District 1

____Jeff Bryant, District 3

_ Mary L. Gonzales, At Large, Position 1
__Rose Mulvany Henry, At Large, Position 3

Prior to the Regular Meeting there will be an Installation Ceremony for Mary
Gonzales, Tom Groneman, and David Haley.

I11.

IV.

V.

VI

VIL.

Approval of Agenda

Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of December 15,2021
General Manager Comments
Board Comments

Adjourn



Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 12-15-21
Agenda Item #1V



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, December 15, 2021 at 6:00 P.M. The following Board
Members were present: Robert L. Milan, President; Mary Gonzales, Vice President; Rose
Mulvany Henry, Secretary; Jeff Bryant, Thomas Groneman, and Ryan Eidson.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief
Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Johnetta Hinson,
Executive Director Customer Service; Jeremy Ash, Executive Director Electric Operations;
Jerry Ohmes, Executive Director Electric Supply; Steve Green, Executive Director Water
Operations; Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production; Maurice Moss, Executive
Director Corporate Compliance; David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer; Jerry
Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager; Randy Otting, Director
Accounting; Dennis Dumovich, Director Human Resources; and, Patrice Townsend, Director
Utility Services.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities.

Mr. Milan called the Board Meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. He welcomed all that were
listening to or viewing the meeting. He stated that the Board felt it was necessary to offer the
use of technology for staff as well as for the general public. Members of the community who
wished to speak to the Board during the public comment session must be logged in to the Zoom
meeting through the internet using their browser or the Zoom application. Those wishing to
offer comments during the public comments section could click on the raised hand feature at the
bottom of the application or window or press Star 9 if connected by phone only. During the
public comment section of the agenda, community members would be asked to provide their
name and address and had five minutes to speak. As always, the public could also email or call
the BPU with any concerns. The agenda and presentations could be found on the BPU website
or if they were using Zoom they would appear on their screen. Mr. Milan introduced himself
and the other Board Members along with the General Manager, and Legal Counsel.

Roll call was taken and all Board Members were present via teleconference.

Item #3 — Approval of Amended Asenda

A motion was made to approve the Amended Agenda by Mr. Groneman, seconded by
Mr. Eidson, and unanimously carried.

Page 1 of 9



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #4 — Approval of Special Session Minutes of November 23, 2021

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Special Session of November 23,
2021 by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

Item #5 — Approval of Work Session Minutes of December 1, 2021

Mr. Eidson suggested future minutes should provide more elaboration than just board
discussion.

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Work Session of December 1, 2021
by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Eidson, and unanimously carried.

Item #6 — Approval of Regular Session Minutes of December 1, 2021

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Regular Session of December 1,
2021 by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

Item #7 — Public Comments

Mr. David Haley, P.O. Box 171110, spoke about the audit being requested by the new
Unified Government (UG) administration. He asked for confirmation that the BPU did an
external audit. He also suggested the General Manager consider sharing those reports with the
new administration to prevent a duplicate audit being done by the UG. He also wanted to
recognize the late Mr. Joe Dick’s service to the utility.

Mr. Johnson said that he planned on meeting with the Mayor to have a discussion
regarding the request for audit and to make that information available to him.

Mr. Bryant added that he hoped the audit information focused on how much free
services, discounted services, and dollars came from the BPU bill and employees assisting the

UG and what that value was to the residents of our city.

Mr. Milan said that the topic of audits would be included at an orientation provided to
the new Mayor.

Ms. Mulvany Henry asked that we consider putting our audits on our website.

Page 2 of 9



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

A motion was made to pause the Regular Session at 6:16 P.M., to seek shelter elsewhere
because of inclement weather, by Mr. Groneman, seconded by Ms. Mulvany Henry, and
unanimously carried.

At 6:31 P.M. the meeting came back into session; all Board members were present.

The discussion on external audits continued.

Ms. Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer, gave an
overview on the external audit process. The annual comprehensive financial report was the

summary of the external audit and was on our website.

Mr. Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer, would explore creating a new tab on the
website to house audit information.

Ms. Mulvany Henry added that clarifications from the Mayor’s team indicated they were
possibly looking at duplication of functions.

Mr. Johnson gave remarks on the late Joe Dick regarding him as a friend as well as his
efforts on behalf of the utility in his legislative duties. He requested a moment of silence to
commemorate his passing.

Item #8 — General Manager / Staff Reports

1. COVID-19 Update: Mr. Johnson gave an update on the utility’s current COVID
statistics. To date, 73% of the employees were vaccinated.

. 2022 BPU Budget Approval of Resolution #5268: Ms. Austin gave a PowerPoint
presentation to recap the process and focus of the 2022 Budget (see attached
presentation).

Mr. Johnson and Ms. Austin addressed questions from the Board.

A motion was made to accept Resolution 5268, 2022 Budget Approval as presented by
staff by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Gonzales.

Roll call was taken;

Page 3 of 9



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

1ii.

1v.

Mr. Eidson — No

Mr. Groneman — Yes

Mr. Milan — Yes

Mr. Bryant — Yes

Ms. Gonzales — Yes

Ms. Mulvany Henry — No

The motion carried 4-2.

Juneteenth Federal Holiday: Mr. Johnson reminded that the Federal Government had
approved Juneteenth, June 19, as a federal holiday. The UG had approved June 20,
2022 as a holiday since the 19" was on a Sunday. He asked the Board to consider
Juneteenth as an additional holiday.

There was discussion about how many holidays BPU and UG had.

Ms. Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief Counsel, presented Resolution 5271, amending
Section 6 of the Personnel Code of the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities, to add
Juneteenth as a holiday.

There was discussion on what holidays were currently in the Union contract.

A motion was made to accept Resolution 5271 to add the Juneteenth to the holidays
noticed by the BPU as long as it is aggregable to the union in a letter of understanding,
by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

BPU Collective Bargaining Contract: Mr. Dennis Dumovich, Director Human

Resources, summarized the Collective Bargaining Agreements which would be in
affect from 7/1/2020 — 6/30/2023 (see attached PowerPoint).

Page 4 of 9



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

A motion was made to accept Resolution #5269, pertaining to the Physical Unit
Working Rules, seconded by Ms. Mulvany Henry.

Roll call was taken;

Mr. Eidson — Yes

Mr. Groneman — Yes

Mr. Milan — Yes, however, for the record he was saying yes with reluctance.
Mr. Bryant — Yes

Ms. Gonzales — Yes

Ms. Mulvany Henry — Yes

The motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made to accept Resolution #5270, pertaining to the Clerical Unit
Working Rules, seconded by Mr. Eidson.

Roll call was taken;

Mr. Eidson — Yes

Mr. Groneman — Yes

Mr. Milan — Yes, however, for the record he was saying yes with reluctance.
Mr. Bryant - Yes

Ms. Gonzales — Yes

Ms. Mulvany Henry — Yes

The motion carried unanimously.

Page 5 of 9



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

V.

Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Johnson introduced Mr. Maurice Moss, Executive
Director Corporate Compliance. Mr. Moss, gave a brief summary of his experience.

Mr. Johnson spoke about conversations with the newly-elected Mayor Garner. He
would be meeting with him over the upcoming weeks.

Mr. Johnson recognized Board Member Ryan Eidson, thanked him and presented him
with a plaque for the time he spent as a BPU Board member.

Mr. Eidson spoke and thanked staff and the Board for their support over the last four
years.

Mr. Johnson also recognized Mr. Jerry Ohmes, retiring Executive Director Electric
Supply. He thanked him and presented him with a plaque for his years of service at BPU

and congratulated him on his upcoming retirement.

Mr. Ohmes thanked a plethora of people for all of the help and support he had received
over his career at BPU.

Mr. Johnson wished the Board and staff a Merry Christmas.

Item #9 — Board Comments

Mr. Eidson welcomed Mr. Moss 1o the team and congratulated Mr. Ohmes on his

amazing career. He asked Mr. Johnson about the information on UG free services regarding
residential and commercial services.

Ms. Austin said they were waiting to hear back from the UG with information.
Mr. Johnson said that he would send information on consumption rates.
Mr. Eidson wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.

Mr. Groneman also congratulated Mr. Ohmes on his retirement and welcomed Mr.

Moss. He also wanted to wish everyone a safe holiday season.

Mr. Bryant echoed the previous congratulations and also thanked Ryan for his work

as an elected official. He also mentioned the upcoming Executive Session.

Page 6 of 9



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

A motion was made to make an amendment of a procedure, to restrict cell phone
usage during Executive Sessions, except in an emergency situation; legal counsel would
exempt from this provision, by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Mulvany Henry, and
unanimously carried.

Ms. Gonzales spoke about the crucial importance to the community and the utility of
passing the budget. She shouted out to all employees for the work done through this
unprecedented time. She thanked Mr. Ohmes and Mr. Eidson for their service. she also
welcomed Mr. Moss and remembered Mr. Joe Dick and his service to the utility and
community.

Ms. Mulvany Henry also echoed the previous comments and wished Mr. Ohmes peace
and relaxation in his retirement. She welcomed Mr. Moss. She thanked Mr. Eidson for his
guidance as a Board member. She also hoped the Board would continue to push for greater
accountability for the community. She also honored Mr. Joe Dick, and hoped that she would
leave an impact the way he did.

Mr. Milan welcomed Mr. Moss to BPU. He also expressed his views on the labor
contract negotiations and the number of times they went back and forth. He spoke about the
importance of Mr. Ohmes’s service and also some experiences with Mr. Joe Dick. He wished
everyone a Merry Christmas.

Item #10 — Executive Session

Ms. Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief Counsel, proposed a motion for adoption as follows:

“I move that, after taking a five minute break, the Board go into Executive Session in the first
floor Board room to discuss confidential matters related to the general manager, a personnel
matter of a nonelected personnel as justified under the personnel matters of a nonelected
employee exception in the Kansas Open Meetings Act; and the Deputy Chief Counsel Angela
Lawson and the General Manager William Johnson, as needed be present to participate in the
discussion, all others to be dismissed from the room and public electronic and telephonic
transmissions cease, and reconvene in this room in open session returning to both electronic
and telephonic broadcasting at 8:22 P.M. to either take action in an open session or to adjourn.”

This motion was made by Ms. Mulvany Henry, seconded by Mr. Bryant and carried
unanimously.

Page 7 of 9



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021
STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

At 8:22 P.M. the meeting was opened.

A motion was made to extend the Executive Session for 22 minutes by Mr. Bryant, seconded by
Mr. Eidson and carried unanimously.

At 8:45 P.M. the meeting was opened.

A motion was made to extend the Executive Session for 15 minutes by Mr. Bryant, seconded by
Ms. Gonzales. All voted in favor except for Mr. Eidson who had stepped out for a moment.

At 9:00 P.M. the meeting was opened.

A motion was made to extend the Executive Session for 10 minutes by Mr. Bryant, seconded by
Ms. Mulvany Henry and carried unanimously.

At 9:10 P.M. the meeting was opened.

A motion was made to extend the Executive Session for 8 minutes by Mr. Eidson, seconded by
Mr. Bryant and carried unanimously.

At 9:20 P.M. the meeting was opened.

A motion was made to recess the meeting for 10 minutes and stay in open session by Mr.
Bryant, seconded by Mr. Eidson and carried unanimously.

At 9:35 the meeting resumed.
Ms. Lawson explained the contract amendment and answered questions from the Board.

A motion was made to accept the contract extension for the General Manager as presented by
Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Gonzales.

Roll call was taken;
Mr. Eidson — No

Mr. Groneman — Yes, with the understanding that Mr. Johnson moved forward with the
Executive Development.

Page 8 of 9



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021
STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Mr. Milan — Yes

Mr. Bryant — Yes

Ms. Gonzales — Yes

Ms. Mulvany Henry — No

The motion carried.

Item #11 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Regular Session at 9:40 P.M. by Mr. Bryant, seconded
by Mr. Milan, and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 9 of 9


















RESOLUTION NUMBER 5268

A RESOLUTION APPROVING, ADOPTING AND APPROPRIATING THE BUDGET
OF THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES, AN ADMINISTRATIVE
AGENCY OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE COUNTY/ KANSAS
CITY, KANSAS FOR THE 2022 BUDGET FOR THE YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1,
2022, AS SUBMITTED. )

WHEREAS, the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities, an administrative agency of the
Unified Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas ("KCBPU") pursuant to
Charter Ordinance 5-01, Section 13(c) has reviewed said budget which includes an
annual operating and construction forecast reflecting proposed operating and capital
expenditures of any utility for the ensuing calendar year and fully reviewed these
budgets,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED BY THE
GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU:

In compliance with the Unified Government Charter Ordinance 5-01, Section
13(c) the 2022 Annual Budget of the KCBPU which includes an annual operating and
construction forecast reflecting proposed operating and capital expenditures of any
utility for the ensuing calendar year, as submitted by the General Manager and as set
out in Attachment A, is hereby approved and adopted.

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU
THIS 15TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2021.

Robert Milan, Board President

Attest: \%CM M ’/Jt/,f/v

Approvgd as'to form:

g

A )éela J. Lawson
KCBPU Legal Counsel



RESOLUTION NO. 5 3‘ 2 {

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 6 OF THE PERSONNEL CODE OF THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF
PUBLIC UTILITIES, TO ADD JUNETEENTH AS A HOLIDAY.

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Charter Ordinance 5-01 Section 13(e) of the Code of the Unified Government of
Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas, the Board of Public Utilities has authority to adopt a Personnel
Code;

WHEREAS, the Board of Public Utilities wishes to amend said code to inciude Juneteenth in the list of
holidays recognized by the KCBPU.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC
UTILITIES AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That Section VI is amended to include Juneteenth in the list of recognized KCBPU holidays.

Section 2. The General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to take such further action, and
execute such other documents, certificates, and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry
out and comply with the intent of this Ordinance.

Section 3. This amendment shall take effect and be in full force on January 1, 2022.

The foregoing resolution is adopted by the Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas, this
/5*A dayot DELEMBEF, 2021.

THE BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OF KANSAS CITY, KANSAS

BVW WZW /Q/(/'

President

ATTEST:

DocuSigned by:

Kose MMW? trunry

7320225A5806456

Secretary


















KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
RESOLUTION NO. 5269

RESOLUTION APPROVING WORKING RULES AGREEMENT WITH THE
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS, LOCAL NO. 53,
THE CARPENTERS DISTRICT COUNCIL AND THE PAINTERS DISTRICT COUNCIL
NO. 3 FOR THE TERM OF JULY 1, 2020 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2023 FOR THE
PHYSICAL BARGAINING UNIT.

WHEREAS, the General Manager has presented to the Board a proposed Working Rules
Agreement which has been negotiated with the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers,
Local No. 53, the Carpenters District Council and the Painters District Council No. 3 for the term
of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023 providing for terms and conditions of employment of
employees within the Physical Bargaining Unit (“Working Rules Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the General Manager recommends to the Board that it approve the Working
Rules Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF
PUBLIC UTILITIES:

SECTION ONE: The Working Rules Agreement is hereby approved by the Board.

SECTION TWO: The President of the Board of Public Utilities is hereby authorized
and directed to execute in the name of the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities the Working
Rules Agreement.

SECTION THREE: This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption and execution.

The foregoing resolution is adopted by the Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City,

Kansas, this llﬁﬂﬂ day of D&Cﬁmﬁbﬁ) ,2021.

THE BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OF
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS

By _ (%WW?’/&W »(L

President

ATTEST:

Secrefary



KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
RESOLUTION NO. 5270

RESOLUTION APPROVING WORKING RULES AGREEMENT WITH THE
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS, LOCAL NO. 53,
FOR THE TERM OF JULY 1, 2020 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2023 FOR THE CLERICAL
BARGAINING UNIT.

WHEREAS, the General Manager has presented to the Board a proposed Working Rules
Agreement which has been negotiated with the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers,
Local No. 53, for the term of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023 providing for terms and conditions
of employment of employees within the Clerical Bargaining Unit (“Working Rules Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the General Manager recommends to the Board that it approve the Working
Rules Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF
PUBLIC UTILITIES:

SECTION ONE: The Working Rules Agreement is hereby approved by the Board.

SECTION TWO: The President of the Board of Public Utilities is hereby authorized
and directed to execute in the name of the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities the Working

Rules Agreement.

SECTION THREE: This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption and execution.

The foregoing resolution is adopted by the Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City,

Kansas, this ‘51‘ day of NECEMPER. |, 2021.

THE BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OF
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS

é@mﬁ/m%

President

Secx@tary







